
 

Licensing and 
Regulatory Sub- 

Committee 

 

Title: Agenda 

Date: Wednesday 14 March 2018 

Time: 1.30pm – Briefing for Members of the Sub-Committee in 

the Members’ Room 
 

2.00pm – Hearing Commences in the Council Chamber 

Venue: Council Chamber  
District Offices  

College Heath Road  
Mildenhall 

Full Members 
(3): 

John Bloodworth 
Brian Harvey 
Nigel Roman 

The membership of this Sub-Committee is drawn from Members of the full 
Licensing and Regulatory Committee and needs not to be politically 

balanced. 

Substitutes: Named substitutes are not appointed 

Interests – 

Declaration and 
Restriction on 

Participation: 

Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 

disclosable pecuniary interest not entered in the Authority's 
register or local non pecuniary interest which they have in any 

item of business on the agenda (subject to the exception for 
sensitive information) and to leave the meeting prior to 
discussion and voting on an item in which they have a 

disclosable pecuniary interest. 

Quorum: Two Members 

Committee 
administrator: 

Helen Hardinge 
Democratic Services Officer 
Tel: 01638 719363 

Email: helen.hardinge@westsuffolk.gov.uk 
 

 

 

Public Document Pack



 LICENSING ACT 2003 – HEARING PROCEDURE 
 

Pre-Hearing Matters 

1. Declaration of Interests 

2. Chairman will introduce members of the Hearing Panel 

3. Chairman will ask those present to introduce themselves in 
the following order: 

 Applicant and any person representing or assisting 
them (Confirmation also should be given that copies 

of the relevant representations to be considered at 
the Hearing have been received); 

 The Officer of the Licensing Authority, the 

Committee Administrator and the Legal Advisor to 
the Hearing Panel;  

 Responsible authorities that have made a relevant 
representation; 

 Interested parties who have made a relevant 

representation (Interested parties should confirm 
whether a spokesperson has been nominated and, if 

so identify them); 
 In the event of a review hearing, the respondent. 

 

4. The Chairman will ask all parties to the Hearing whether 
they wish to withdraw their application or representation. 

5. The Chairman will ask the Officer of the Licensing Authority 
to report: 

 Any requests from a party to the Hearing for 

permission for a witness to appear in support of 
their representation. Any such requests will be 

determined by the Hearing Panel. 
 Any documentary or other information that a party 

to the Hearing wishes to present. If there is any 

such material, the Chairman will ask all the other 
parties to the Hearing whether they consent to it 

being presented. If they agree, the material will be 
distributed.  If not, the said material may not be 

distributed unless there are exceptional 
circumstances which in the Chairman’s opinion 
render it necessary and appropriate for the said 

material to be presented to the Hearing Panel.  In 
this regard the Chairman’s decision will be final. 

6. The Chairman will invite the applicant or his representative 
to estimate the time required to present their case and ask 
questions of other parties to the Hearing. He will then ask 

the other parties to the Hearing whether they will require a 
longer period to present their representation and question 

the applicant. The Hearing Panel will determine the 
maximum period of time allowed for each party to put their 

 



 
 

  Page No 
 

case.  This decision will be final. 

THE HEARING 

Immediately the pre-Hearing matters have been dealt with the 
Hearing will commence. 

1. The Chairman will ask the Officer of the Licensing Authority 
to summarise the matter under consideration. 

2. The members of the Hearing Panel, the applicant, and 

those making representations may ask questions of the 
Officer of the Licensing Authority.  

3. Starting with the applicant and, in the event of a review, 
concluding with the respondent, each party will exercise 
their rights within the identified maximum time, as follows: 

 Each party to present their case, including 
responding to any points of which the Licensing 

Authority has previously given notice, and call any 
approved witness or witnesses in support of their 
case. 

 If given permission by the Chairman, and only 
through the Chairman of the Hearing, each member 

of Sub Committee, office of the Licensing Authority 
or any party may raise questions of any other party 
or witness/witnesses. 

4. Starting with the applicant and, in the event of a review 
hearing, concluding with the respondent, each party will be 

asked to sum up their case. 

5. All those present, other than the members of the Hearing 
Panel, their Legal Advisor and the Committee 

Administrator, will be asked to leave the meeting to allow 
Members to determine the application. 

6. All parties will be recalled. The Legal Advisor to the 
Hearing Panel will advise those present of any advice that 
has been provided during the determination. The Chairman 

will then: 

 either announce the decision, together with the 

reasons for it if it is a Hearing in relation to an 
application for which the Licensing Authority may 

make its determination at the conclusion of the 
Hearing;  

or 

 advise all the parties that the Licensing Authority 
will make its determination within 5 working days, in 

which case notification of the determination will be 
sent out in writing (including the rights of appeal) to 



 
 

  Page No 
 

all relevant parties not later than 5 working days 
after the Hearing date. 

7. In the event of the Licensing Authority making its 
determination at the conclusion of the Hearing the 

Chairman will outline the rights of appeal.  The decision 
and rights of appeal will also be confirmed in writing by the 
Officer of the Licensing Authority forthwith. 

8. Nothing within paragraph 6 above will preclude a Licensing 
Authority from making its determination at the conclusion 

of any Hearing, should the Hearing Panel so decide.  It is 
entirely within the discretion of the Members of the said 
Panel whose decision in this regard will be final. 

 
 

 



 

 Agenda 

 

 

 Procedural Matters 
 

 

 Part 1 – Public 
 

 

 
Page No 

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 

 

2.   Substitutes  

 

 

3.   Election of Chairman  
 

 

4.   Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence in respect 
of Regent Place, 122 High Street, Newmarket 

1 - 50 

 Report No: LSC/FH/18/003 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Licensing and 

Regulatory 
Sub-Committee 

 

Title of Report: Application for the Grant of a 
Premises Licence in respect of 

Regent Place, 122 High 
Street, Newmarket 
 

Report No: LSC/FH/18/003 

Report to and 

date/s: Licensing and Regulatory Sub-Committee – 14 March 
2018 

Portfolio holder: Councillor Lance Stanbury 
Portfolio Holder for Planning and Growth 

Tel: 07970 947704 
Email: lance.stanbury@forest-heath.gov.uk 
 

Lead officer: Sheila Gowans 
Licensing Officer 

Tel: 01638 719364 
Email: sheila.gowans@westsuffolk.gov.uk 

 

Purpose of report: To determine an application for the grant of a Premises 

Licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 
There have been a number of representations, and the 
Sub-Committee are, therefore, required to determine  

the application. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4

mailto:lance.stanbury@forest-heath.gov.uk
mailto:sheila.gowans@westsuffolk.gov.uk


Recommendation: It is recommended that, having regard to the 

four Licensing Objectives; Statement of Licensing 
Policy; the representation(s) and any further 

relevant information presented on the day of the 
Hearing; Members take any of the steps set out 
below provided they are proportionate and 

appropriate for the promotion of the four 
licensing objectives: 

 
(1) Approve the application;  

or 

(2) Modify the conditions of the licence and 
approve the application;  

or 
(3) Reject the application. 

 

Key Decision: 
 

Is this a Key Decision and, if so, under which 
definition? 

No, it is not a Key Decision - ☒ 

 

Consultation: See number 4 below 

Alternative option(s): N/A – the Council is duty bound to determine 
the application 

Implications:  

Are there any financial 

implications? If yes, please give 
details 

Yes ☐    No ☒ 

 

Are there any staffing 
implications? If yes, please give 

details 

Yes ☐    No ☒ 

 

Are there any ICT implications? 

If yes, please give details 

Yes ☐    No ☒ 

 

Are there any legal and/or 
policy implications? If yes, 
please give details 

Yes ☒    No ☐ 

See number 5 below  

 

Are there any equality 

implications? If yes, please give 
details 

Yes ☐    No ☒ 

 

Risk/opportunity assessment: (potential hazards or opportunities affecting 

corporate, service or project objectives) 
Risk area Inherent 

level of risk 

(before 

controls) 

Controls Residual risk (after 

controls) 

Any decision reached 
which is not in 
accordance with the 
Act and any 
regulations made 
under the Act may be 
considered ultra vires 

and could be subject 
to an application for 
Judicial Review 

High The Sub-Committee, 
should have regard to its 
statement of licensing 
policy and any other 
guidance issued under 
section 182 of the 
Licensing Act 2003, but 

may depart from these 
where reasons are given. 

Low 

Page 2



Ward(s) affected: St Marys directly and possibly neighbouring 

Wards 
 

Background papers: Licensing Act 2003 
S.182 Guidance 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publicatio
ns/explanatory-memorandum-
revised-guidance-issued-under-s-

182-of-licensing-act-2003  
 

Forest Heath Statement of Licensing 
Policy 
http://www.forestheath.gov.uk/info/20006

3/licences_and_street_trading/22/st
atement_of_licensing_policy  

 

Documents attached: Appendix 1 – Application 

Appendix 2 – Map of the immediate area 
Appendix 3 - Representation PH 
Appendix 4 – Representation Police 

Appendix 5 – Representation LA 
Appendix 6 – Representation Harlow  

Appendix 7 – Representation Johnstone 
Appendix 8 – Representation Thompson 
Appendix 9 – Representation NTC 

Appendix 10 – Amended operating 
schedule 

 
 

 

 
  

Page 3

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/explanatory-memorandum-revised-guidance-issued-under-s-182-of-licensing-act-2003
http://www.forestheath.gov.uk/info/200063/licences_and_street_trading/22/statement_of_licensing_policy
http://www.forestheath.gov.uk/info/200063/licences_and_street_trading/22/statement_of_licensing_policy
http://www.forestheath.gov.uk/info/200063/licences_and_street_trading/22/statement_of_licensing_policy


1. Key issues 

 
1.1 An application has been received for the grant of a Premises Licence for Regent 

Place, 122 High Street, Newmarket.  A copy of the application is attached which 

includes a plan of the premises as Appendix 1.   
 

1.2 The application is for a restaurant and bar. 
 

The licensable activities applied for are recorded music and the sale of alcohol 

for consumption on and off the premises.   
The opening hours originally requested were Monday to Sunday 09.00 to 01.30. 

 
After consultation with the responsible authorities these have now been 
changed to: 

Mon to Thurs 09.00 to 24.30 
Fri & Sat 09.00 to 01.30 

Sunday 09.00 to 23.30 

 
Live music, as a licensable activity, has been removed but can be played 
between 09.00 to 23.00 as it is now deregulated. 
 

Extra hours, up to 02.00, are requested for up to 35 occasions per calendar 
year for pre-booked events with up to 50 people.  

 
1.3 A map showing the immediate area is attached as Appendix 2. 
 

1.4 The four Licensing Objectives of the Licensing Act 2003 are set out below.  Any 
representations for consideration must relate to one or more of these 

objectives. 
 

 Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

 Public Safety 
 Prevention of Nuisance 

 Protection of Children from Harm 
 
2. Relevant Representations  

 
2.1 The application has to be advertised, both at the premises and in a local 

newspaper.  Details are also available on the Council website. This application 
was advertised in the Newmarket Journal on 1 February 2018.    

   
2.2 Responsible Authority There are three representations from Public Health 

and Housing, the Police and the Licensing Authority.  These can be seen at 

Appendix 3, 4 and 5.    
 

2.3 Other Persons Any representation made by these persons must be ‘relevant’ 
in that the representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives. 
There have been four representations from other persons, which are attached 

as Appendix 6 to 9. 
 

 
 
 

Page 4



3. Matters for consideration 

 
3.1 Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 imposes a duty on each local 

authority to exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of 

the exercise of those functions on, and the need to do all that it reasonably can 
to prevent crime and disorder in its area. 

 
3.2 The location of the premises is within the Cumulative Impact area of 

Newmarket which members should have regard to when making their decision. 

 
3.3 If the Licensing Authority decides that this application should be refused, it will 

need to show that to grant the licence would: 
 

1. undermine the promotion of the licensing objectives; and  

2. that appropriate conditions would be ineffective in preventing the problems 
involved.  

  
 If the Licensing Authority cannot show the above, the application should be 

granted. 

 
3.4 In making their decision, Members are advised to consider the Licensing Act 

2003, the Guidance on the Act and the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy.  
 
4. Consultation  

 
4.1 The applicant is required to place a notice on the premises; and advertise the 

application in a locally circulating newspaper/periodical.  The Licensing 
Authority advertises the application on the Council website. 

 
4.2 During the application period discussions have taken place between the 

applicant and the responsible authorities.  This has resulted in a change to the 

opening times as detailed at 1.2 and some amendments to the operating 
schedule which can be seen at Appendix 10.   

 
5. Legal and policy implications 
 

5.1 The Sub-Committee may take any of the steps set out below, provided they are 
proportionate and appropriate for the promotion of the Licensing Objectives: 

 
a)  Approve the application; or 
b)  modify the conditions of the licence and approve the application; or 

b)  reject the whole or part of the application. 
 

A condition is modified where it is altered or omitted or any new condition is 
added. 

 

5.2 Section 6 of the Licensing Statement of Policy, paragraph 6.1, as set out below, 
is relevant and is brought to the attention of the Licensing Act Sub-Committee: 

“The Licensing Authority, through the exercise of its licensing functions once its 
discretion is engaged, shall not seek to restrict the trading hours of any 
particular premises unless it is considered necessary and proportionate to 

promote one or more of the licensing objectives.  Each application will be 
considered individually on its own merits;” 

Page 5



 

5.3 The current statement of licensing policy, includes a cumulative impact policy at 
section 9. The premises is sited within the area covered by the Cumulative 
Impact Policy adopted for Newmarket and therefore, this is a relevant matter 

for consideration in respect of this particular application and full consideration of  
the statement of licensing policy. 

 
5.4 The Cumulative impact policy was based on evidence received from Suffolk 

Constabulary and sought, as indicated in the statement of licensing policy to 

“prevent a further increase in the number of licensed premises within the 
area…”.  This application as a new premises would be an increase in that 

number. 
 
5.5 The policy states that “the proposals in respect of the town centre are intended 

to target those premises that will increase the numbers of customers in the 
area and those premises serving alcoholic drinks and/or takeaway food after 

11:00pm that can act as a flash point for crime and disorder and public 
nuisance.  It is not intended to constrain the development of other 
entertainment uses which do not add to the problems being experienced in this 

area”.   
 

5.6 A cumulative impact policy should never be absolute. Where an application is 
referred to a hearing, the circumstances of each application must be considered 
properly. As stated in the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, the impact 

can be expected to be different for premises with different styles and 
characteristics.  

 
5.7 Each application should be considered on its own merits, having regard to the 

Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and the guidance issued under section 
182 of the Licensing Act 2003.  

  

5.8 The licence application is made in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 and 
the Licensing Statement of Policy. The decision may be appealed, by the 

applicant or any other party to the hearing, within 21 days of written 
notification of the determination made by the sub-committee.   

 

5.9 When representations have been made the Council must hold a Hearing within 
20 working days of the close of the consultation period.  The Licensing Act 2003 

(Hearings) Regulations 2005 allows the Licensing Authority the power to extend 
the time limit for a specific period, when it considers this to be necessary and in 
the public interest. 

Page 6



APPENDIX 1

Page 7



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



APPENDIX 2

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 4

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 5

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 6

Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7

Page 41



Page 42



APPENDIX 8

Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 9

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 10 

 

REGENT PLACE NEWMARKET 
 
 
 
1. A written notice of authority record will be kept for all staff who sell alcohol.  

 
2. The contact details of the Designated Premise supervisor shall be available to staff and authorised 

officers. 
 

3. Alcohol will be primarily sold to complement the provision of food, which will be available to 
customers throughout the hours that alcohol is sold. 

 
4. Seating will be available for all customers, except in front of the bar area shown on the plan. 

 
5. Staffing levels will be maintained appropriately to ensure adequate security. 

 
6. High value items will be stored securely. 

 
7. A policy of zero tolerance to drugs and weapons will be in place. 

 
8. A CCTV system will be installed in accordance with the recommendations of Suffolk Police and the 

Licensing Authority.  This system shall be in operation at all times when licensable activities are 
taking place. 

 
9. CCTV recordings will be available for a minimum period of 28 days and handed to the police or duly 

authorised officers of the council upon request.  The CCTV system shall be secure and under the 
control of the premises licence holder or other named individual. 

 
10. SIA trained door-staff will be used at a time, level and number appropriate to the level of risk 

identified by the management of the business in consultation with the police and other authorities. 
 

11. Staff will be trained on all security issues including how to identify and refuse service to customers 
that are drunk or appear to be drunk. 

 
12. Alcohol will not be allowed to be taken from the premises in open bottles or containers. 

 
13. Management will have an effective Safety policy for staff and customers.  Risks to safety will be 

assessed daily before and during opening hours. 
 

14. The entrance and walkways within the premises will be kept free from obstruction. 
 

15. Appropriate fire-fighting equipment will be installed and maintained in good working order, and staff 
will be trained in its use. 

 
16. Fire risk assessments will be undertaken and acted upon in accordance with current 

recommendations and requirements. 
 

17. Effective lighting will be maintained and operated to ensure the safety of the public and staff. 
 

18. No light on or from the property shall be provided where that light causes a nuisance to nearby 
residents or businesses. 

 
19. The premises and public areas nearby will be kept free from litter associated with the operation of 

the business. 
 

20. Arrangements will be put in place to supervise an orderly dispersal of customers when leaving the 
property to ensure the minimum of noise and disturbance to local residents and businesses. 

 
21. Notices will be displayed, in a place where they can be easily read, asking customers to leave the 

premises and the area quietly and to dispose of waste responsibly. 
 

22. Deliveries to and waste removal from the site will be undertaken at a time and in a manner that 
does not cause disturbance. 

Page 49



APPENDIX 10 

 

 
23. Live or recorded music from regulated entertainment shall not be audible at the nearest noise 

sensitive property, so as to cause a disturbance to local residents or businesses.  
 

24. Live music will not be played before 09.00 or after 23.00. 
 

25. Recorded music will be played as background music only throughout the premises during 
licensable hours.  No amplified music will be played in the bar area as marked on the plan. 

 
26. The premises licence holder or their representative shall conduct regular assessments of the noise 

coming from the premises on each occasion they are used for regulated entertainment. Appropriate 
steps shall be taken to reduce the level of noise where it is found to be heard at the façade of the 
nearest residential property. 

 
27. Any complaints received about noise shall be logged and appropriate remedial action taken as a 

matter of urgency. 
 

28. The premises will be promoted as family friendly and suitable for all ages.  There will be no 
inappropriate entertainment, promotions, activities or behaviour tolerated at the premises that might 
put children at risk. 

 
29. The premises will operate a Challenge 25 policy for age-restricted products.  Notices relating to this 

policy will be displayed clearly on the premises.  The notices will indicate that any customers not 
appearing to have reached the age of 25 will be required to produce appropriate identification 
proving that they have turned 18 before being sold alcohol. 

 
30. Appropriate ID will be a valid passport, photo driving licence, PASS accredited proof of age card or 

other reliable photo-ID that is recommended and approved for acceptance by the police or other 
authorities. 

 
31. Staff shall be trained in aspects of responsible alcohol retailing and in particular the Protection of 

Children, including the Challenge 25 policy. 
 

32. Training will be given before a staff member is authorised to sell alcohol within the premises. 
 

33. Staff training records will be available for inspection by the police or other responsible authority 
upon request.  

 
34. There will be a controlled smoking area to the rear of the premises.  There will be no access to or 

from this area to the New Cut except as a means of escape in an emergency.  
 

35. There will be no admission to customers under the age of 21 years without the booking of a table 
meal on a Friday and Saturday night. 

 
36. No new customers will be allowed admission after 24.00 hours.  
 
Non Standard timings 
 
On no more than 35 times per calendar year, opening times extended to 02.30 and all other activities 
extended to 0200 for bona-fide pre-booked private functions that are recorded in a diary and available for 
inspection by the responsible authorities. The capacity limit for these private events is 50 people.  All other 
customers would have to vacate the premises in line with standard operating times. 
 

 
 
 

Page 50


	Agenda
	4 Application for the Grant of a Premises Licence in respect of Regent Place, 122 High Street, Newmarket
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 1
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 2
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 3
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 4
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 5
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 6
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 7
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 8
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 9
	LSC.FH.18.003 Premises Licence Application Regents Place Newmarket - Appendix 10


